
 

         

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created 
under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

community-wide infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AUGUST 11, 2025 
4:15 P.M. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Thousand Oaks HOA Office 

1034 Center Stone Lane 
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
August 11, 2025 

4:15 p.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Moment of Silence 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda/ Board Member Disclosures   

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. July 14, 2025, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………………Page 2 

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on Fountain Installation 

2. Update Regarding Golf Cart 

3. Update on Logo Trademark 

a. Discussion: Clarify and Confirm Direction to Outside Counsel Regarding Logo Trademark...Page 6 

4. Update on Approved “Amended and Restated Agreement for Sharing Landscape and 
Irrigation Maintenance Costs” with Thousand Oaks at Congress Master Association, Inc. 

5. Update on Beautification on Congress (along fence line)…………………………………………Page 18 

6. Update on Evaluation Tool of Districts Vendors – Malachi Knowles 

7. Update on Cleanup of Preserve Landscape Bed (Drainage Maintenance & Repair) in Front of 
1000 Centerstone 

8. Update on Annual Retreat – Malachi Knowles  

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding a Call in Number for Residents to Attend Meeting 

2. Discussion Regarding How Districts Funds can be Utilized 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report…………………………………………………………………………………....Page 27 

K. Attorney Matters 

L. Board Member Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 1 of 4 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 14, 2025 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 14, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 4:15 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks’ HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone 
Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in The 
Palm Beach Post on September 24, 2024, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Rance Gaede, Vice Chairman Corey Smith (via 
phone) and Supervisors Malachi Knowles, Horace Towns and Jeffery Jackson. 
 
Staff present was District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc; District Counsel Frank 
Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 
Also present were the following District residents: Brian Gruber and Ann Williams. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and passed unanimously approving a revised 
agenda to include under New Business, the item entitled: Update on “Amended and Restated Agreement 
for Sharing Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Costs” with Thousand Oaks at Congress Master 
Association, Inc. to “Amended and Restated Agreement for Sharing Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance 
Costs” with Thousand Oaks at Congress Master Association, Inc. 
 
F.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1. June 9, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and unanimously passed approving the 
minutes of the June 9, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Williams noted that her name was incorrect in the meeting minutes.  They showed Sandy Williams, 
and it should be Ann Williams.  Ms. Williams also mentioned that the last time she asked if a number could 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

be available for residents to call into the meeting. Mr. Gaede asked that this be added to the agenda for the 
next meeting. 
 
Ms. Bethel then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in The Palm Beach 
Post on June 24, 2025, and July 1, 2025, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget 
 
There were no comments regarding the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2025-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2025-02, as presented. 
 
Ms. Bethel then closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
I. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Fountain Installation 
 
Ms. Bethel directed the Board to review three proposals from BrightView. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jackson, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving 
BrightView’s proposal to Install Plant to Cover Lake Pump Clock Next to 2218 Oakmont Drive in the 
amount of $403.41, as presented. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving 
BrightView’s proposal to Replace Sod Behind House 2220 Oakmont Drive in the amount of $461.02, as 
presented. 
 
Mr. Towns mentioned that BrightView needs to highlight the type of grass in the proposals. 
 
Mr. Jackson noted that BrightView needs to make sure the grass matches what was installed at the current 
location.  
 
 2.  Update Regarding Golf Cart 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

Ms. Bethel stated that there were no updates regarding the golf cart.  Mr. Gaede stated that maybe they 
could cut the price or try a government auction.  Mr. Knowles stated that maybe the golf cart could be 
donated.  Mr. Palen stated that there were limits to whom it can be donated.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jackson, seconded by Mr. Knowles and passed unanimously to lower the price 
of the golf cart to $7,000, accepting nothing lower than $6,000 and which sale is contingent upon the 
approval of legal counsel. 
 
 3.  Update on Logo Trademark 
 
Mr. Palen stated that he had been in communication with Mr. Poropat to get this completed.  
 
 4.  Consider Amended and Restated Agreement for Sharing Landscape and Irrigation 
Maintenance Costs with Thousand Oaks’ at Congress Master Association, Inc. 
 
Mr. Palen stated that he had made the recommended changes that the HOA requested and went over those 
changes with the Board.  Mr. Palen also reminded the Board that the HOA requested retro pay from when 
the amendment was approved back in February.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving the 
revised Amended and Restated Agreement for Sharing Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Costs with 
Thousand Oaks at Congress Master Association, Inc.  
 
 5.  Update on Beautification on Congress (along fence line) 
 
Mr. Jackson gave an update on his meetings with the vendors.  The Board discussed the proposals presented 
and decided to table this item for further discussion at the next meeting. 
 
 6.  Update on Evaluation Tool of District Vendors – Malachi Knowles 
 
Mr. Knowles stated that he was in contact with a vendor to assist in creating the document.  
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Meeting Schedule  
 
Resolution No. 2025-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE THOUSAND 
OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Jackson adopting Resolution No. 2025-03, as 
presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 1 with Mr. Knowles dissenting. 
 
 2.  Annual Retreat – Malachi Knowles 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Knowles indicated that he wanted to throw this back on the table as it had been previously discussed 
but no action was ever taken.  Mr. Gaede asked Mr. Bethel to find out if other districts have done something 
similar and if so, to bring it back for discussion at a later date. 
 
 3.  Clean Up of Preserve Area by 1000 Center Stone 
 
Mr. Jackson updated the Board on BrightView’s proposal.  
 
Following discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously 
passed approving BrightView’s proposal in the amount of $5,693.44 for the cleanup of the Preserve 
landscape bed in front of 1000 Center Stone, as presented. 
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that during her meeting with Mr. Jackson she was asked to coordinate with the District 
Engineer to have them inspect the manholes and provide a proposal for cleaning and repair and to also set 
up a meeting with South Florida Water Management to do a walkthrough of the Preserve and Dry 
Conservation.  
 
L. ATTORNEY MATTERS 
 
There was no further report from the District’s attorney. 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Knowles and Mr. Towns inquired how the District’s funds could be spent.  Mr. Palen will bring that 
information to the next meeting. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
5:31 p.m.   There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 5



1

Tricia Lascasas

From: Michael Poropat <michael@stockmanporopat.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 24, 2025 9:25 AM
To: Frank Palen
Cc: Sylvia Bethel; Malachi Knowles; Marshall Adams; Daniel Anglim
Subject: Re: Frank: 2025.02.27 Engagement Letter - Sylvia Bethel

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hey Frank, 
 
No issues at all!  
 
My understanding from my original conversations was that they wanted to protect the name, but that's 
an easy adjustment on our end. What I would do in that case is file the trademark for a combined word 
and design logo, which will protect both the logo and the text itself.  
 
Please note, this is not normally something I recommend unless the graphic is a main point of 
contention. This is because trademark law is based on use, not filing, and therefore if you ever change 
that logo in any way, you will lose the protection you have over the mark, including protection over the 
words in that mark. So, if you ever change anything about that logo in the future, you have to either (a) 
make sure you continue to use the old logo in some way (this way you maintain that copyright and the 
words remain protected) or (b) file a new application for the new design, which will also allow you to 
protect the new design with whatever changes are made. So, just make sure the board is aware so that 
if/when that time comes, you remember to refile everything! 
 
That said, we'll change it over to the design mark. If you can please send me a higher density version of 
the graphic design so that I can include it in the application that would be helpful. 
 
Also, if the graphic design is important to you, you may also wish to federally copyright the design. It 
offers a slightly different protection, but is the best way for you guys to nationally protect the design given 
your current circumstances. 
 
Trademark is protection for a word or logo which serves as a way to identify a brand and/or associate a 
specific reputation with a product or service. It is limited to this use specifically. Copyright is for the 
protection of artwork. Specifically, for protection of artistic ideas expressed in a tangible form. This 
means it covers things like, sculptures, drawing, photographs, film, theatrical works, music and books. 
Trademark protection is more broad in terms of what it protects, "the wordmark/logo and anything 
confusingly similar to it", but narrow in terms of how it protects it: "within the specific goods and services 
it is used for". Copyright is more narrow in what it protects: "the copyright work and any anything 
substantially similar to it" (this essentially means it has to be identical to the registered work or contain 
elements which are identical to the registered work) but broader in terms of how it protects it, that is 
essentially in any capacity. So while they are different, they do have some overlap as well and in some 
cases, like in the case of a design logo for your business, it can make sense to get both protections. 
 

Page 6



2

The process for copyright is relatively cheap (we charge $650 to file and the filing fee is only $65), and it 
lasts 120 years with no renewal fees, so its a great value for what you're protecting. Something to think 
about! If you have further questions just let me know. 
 
As for arranging a call with me, you're free to call my office anytime, but it's probably easier to just book a 
time on my calendar, which you can access HERE. 
 
Best, 
Mike 
 
Michael Poropat, Esq. 
Stockman & Poropat, PLLC 
371 Sunrise Highway 
Lynbrook, NY 11563 
Direct: 718-215-4082 
Office: 718-657-7400 
 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 
To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 
To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 
To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: 

The information contained in this e-mail message and any attachment is confidential information intended for the use of 
the individual or entity named in this message. This information may be protected by attorney/client privilege, work 

Page 7



3

product  privilege  or other laws, rules, and regulations providing for the protection of confidential communications. If 
you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, use, copying or forwarding of this message 
is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail message in error, please contact the sender of this message by return e-mail 
and delete this message and any attachments. 

 
 
On Fri, Jul 11, 2025 at 12:23 PM Frank Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com> wrote: 

Michael, sorry for taking so long to respond. I have been very busy and let my e-
mails get behind. The form appears to be fine, but I have a basic question which 
will display my ignorance of these matters.  

  

I was under the impression that the Board wanted to register the District’s 
graphic design (an oak tree with a golden capital “T” underneath). See the 
attached example on the cover of our current agenda. The District 
commissioned the graphic and wanted to protect it from being “poached” or 
abused in some way by others. The District itself is not going to be “marketing” 
the logo, as far as I know.  

  

Will you attach the graphic? Do you have an sufficient quality copies?  

  

I suggest we discuss the submittal.  I will call your office on Monday to arrange a 
call. 

  

Thanks for your assistance (and patience). 

  

Frank 

  

Frank S. Palen, Esq., AICP 

Page 8



4

Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 

FCB Bank Building 

1555 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Suite 1200 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

Tel.:  (561) 655-0620 

Fax:  (561) 655-3775 

E-mail: palen@caldwellpacetti.com 

  

From: Michael Poropat <michael@stockmanporopat.com>  
Sent: Friday, July 4, 2025 10:12 PM 
To: Frank Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com> 
Cc: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org>; Malachi Knowles <malachiknowles@icloud.com>; Marshall Adams 
<maa@adamslawfl.com>; Daniel Anglim <dan@stockmanporopat.com> 
Subject: Re: Frank: 2025.02.27 Engagement Letter - Sylvia Bethel 

  

Thanks Frank, 

  

For the goods and services listed, does this sound accurate to you: "Class 35 for community 
compliance management in the nature of management and oversight of common grounds and 
amenities including the landscaping and public infrastructure." 

  

As for the government entity v. joint venture thing, We can attempt to file it under the "other" 
category and see what the state says, but as a special district it doesn't appear you have anything 
that effecturates your existence like a Tax ID number or an identification number for the district. 
The only legitimate evidence I can provide is the ordinance meeting where the creation of the 
district was approved. Realistically, we need something that will identify the existence of the 
state. The Tax ID provided previously was care of Special District Services and is 
referencing THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT and not THOUSAND OAKS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, the distinguishment of which is important to the state 
when filing for intellectual property rights. So, if that Tax ID is accurate, we'd have to use the 
former name as the owner as that is the only "legal name" we have for the organization. 

  

For the specimen, we'll use the FAQ section of your website. We have to provide three 
specimens but we're allowed to provide three identical specimens, so that's what we'll do since 
there are no other specimens available to us. However, if the state does not find that specimen 

Page 9



5

satisfactory, then my recommendation to update the website and/or create/provide some extra 
marketing materials will turn into a requirement if you want to obtain a trademark registration. 

  

Please see the form attached and just review it for me to make sure the information is accurate 
and, if so, we'll go ahead and get this filed 

  

Mike 

  

  

  

Michael Poropat, Esq. 

Stockman & Poropat, PLLC 

371 Sunrise Highway 

Lynbrook, NY 11563 

Direct: 718-215-4082 

Office: 718-657-7400 

  

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

Page 10



6

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: 

The information contained in this e-mail message and any attachment is confidential information intended for the 
use of the individual or entity named in this message. This information may be protected by attorney/client 
privilege, work product  privilege  or other laws, rules, and regulations providing for the protection of 
confidential communications. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, 
use, copying or forwarding of this message is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail message in error, 
please contact the sender of this message by return e-mail and delete this message and any attachments. 

  

  

On Wed, Jul 2, 2025 at 12:58 PM Frank Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com> wrote: 

Hello, Mike. Sorry for the delay in responding. We obviously need to chat 
about the nature and role of special districts in Florida. See my responses 
to your questions below.  

Frank 

  

Frank S. Palen, Esq., AICP 

Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 

FCB Bank Building 

Page 11



7

1555 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Suite 1200 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

Tel.:  (561) 655-0620 

Fax:  (561) 655-3775 

E-mail: palen@caldwellpacetti.com 

  

From: Michael Poropat <michael@stockmanporopat.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 27, 2025 11:51 AM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: Malachi Knowles <malachiknowles@icloud.com>; Frank Palen <palen@caldwellpacetti.com>; 
Marshall Adams <maa@adamslawfl.com> 
Subject: Re: Frank: 2025.02.27 Engagement Letter - Sylvia Bethel 

  

Good morning, 

  

I've been trying to get a clearer understanding of the relationship between SDS and CDD 
and what it is that the CDD does. Can you please confirm that this is all correct: 

  

1.      Thousand Oaks Community Development District (TOCDD) is essentially a 
home owners association that overlooks the certain landscaping and drainage 
water infrastructure and other amenities within the district to ensure it is 
functioning and is upkept.  

[Frank Palen]  TOCDD is not an HOA, although it has certain similar 
functions; it is a unit of special purpose local government of the State of 
Florida operating pursuant to Ch. 190, Fla. Stat. The CDD is governed by a 
5-person Board of Supervisors elected on staggered 4-year terms by the 
registered voters/electorate who live within its boundaries. Those 
boundaries extend beyond the physical limits of Thousand Oaks Planned 
Unit Development (TOPUD), to include an adjacent, unrelated PUD known 
as "Villa Rosa". As permitted by state law, TOCDD was created by the 
original developer to finance and subsequently manage certain public 
improvements within TOPUD for the ultimate benefit of its landowners 
and residents. In the case of TOCDD, those improvements are currently 

Page 12



8

limited to TOPUD’s surface water management system, including several 
large preserve areas and some landscape buffer areas along its exterior 
perimeter. TOPUD’s potable water and sewer systems were built using 
POCDD’s public funds, but upon completion were turned over to the City 
of Riviera Beach to manage.  

Owners of residential land in TOCDD pay annual non-ad valorem special 
benefit assessments to cover the cost of repaying construction debt and 
annual maintenance of the property owned by the CDD. The CDD’s 
assessments appear on each homeowner’s annual property tax bill. 
TOCDD’s public improvements are not privately-owned “common areas”; 
they are public property. “Common Areas” are the maintenance 
responsibility of the TOPUD “Master Association” (the “HOA”), a non-
profit corporation. “Common areas” are defined in a Declaration of 
Covenants and Restrictions recorded in the Public Records and identified 
on a recorded plat. While as a practical matter the THOA and the TOCDD 
may have certain similar maintenance functions, but they are entirely 
separate entities with different statutory purposes.  Most of the 
“amenities” within TOPUD (e.g., recreation areas, parks, roads, etc.), are 
the HOA’s maintenance responsibility. 

When the CDD notices something needs repair or determines that additional 
infrastructure/maintenance is needed, it hires an outside contractor to complete those 
services. 

[Frank Palen] That’s correct. TOCDD has no permanent staff. It is required 
by Florida law to retain a manager, an attorney, an auditor and an 
engineer. It contracts out all other functions. 

2.      Thousand Oaks Community Development District is not owned by Special 
District Services Inc. (SDS) 

[Frank Palen] SDS is a special district management company retained by 
the CDD to manage its affairs. SDS serves at the pleasure of the TOCDD 
Board of Supervisors. SDS has no role in managing TOHOA.  

3.      SDS aconsults and adviseds CDD on how to continue its operation as a 
community development district. 

Page 13



9

[Frank Palen] SDS manages TOCDD’s affairs (e.g., complies with statutory 
requirements, prepares a budget, organizes meetings, keeps minutes, 
answers resident or Board Member questions, etc.) 

4.      There is no legal entity filed in Florida or any other state for which the CDD 
operates out of. 

[Frank Palen] TOCDD is not a subsidiary of any other entity. It is an 
entirely independent type of public corporation. All CDDs (there are c. 700) 
operate under a uniform charter created by the Florida Legislature -- 
Chapter 190, Fla. Stat., and an ordinance adopted by the general purpose 
local government in which it is located – in this case, the City of Riviera 
Beach. However, once its existence is initiated by the City, the CDD is 
entirely independent of any City control. 

Please confirm that each of those statements are true. Assuming they are, we can 
attempt to file this as a joint venture.  

[Frank Palen] There is no joint venture. The CDD is just trying to register a 
logo it will own as a public asset. 

  

The state may reject it as a non-filed entity, but because they list "joint venture" as an 
option, I imagine they won't. Regardless, you guys should really be incorporated as an 
entity for various different legal and business reasons. I recommend you consider doing 
that.  

[Frank Palen] A CDD is “incorporated” as a special type of local 
government entity. It is not a “private” enterprise or a business 
organization. 

  

Additionally, we will file it under class 35 as essentially you are promoting the interest of 
the home owners and then redistributing the funds paid to the HOA to upkeep the 
development. 

  

[Frank Palen] While we may share the same constituency (the residents 
and homeowners in TOPUD), TOCDD has no direct financial or other 

Page 14



10

relationship with TOHOA. TOCDD’s annual assessment resources are used 
exclusively to repay construction debt initially incurred to build public 
facilities and to cover the annual cost of maintaining only those facilities 
owned by TOCDD. For convenience and cost savings, TOCDD has retained 
TOHOA as a contractor to maintain landscaping on certain property 
owned by the CDD. TOHOA is a contractual service-provider to TOCDD. 
This is  an “arms-length” transaction. 

  

Regarding Question 4 (the additional documentation/evidence), we will file based on the 
very limited information we have on the website, but it is likely to get denied. I would 
highly recommend altering the website to better elaborate on the specific purposes that 
this CDD provides. I know you say you don't offer services, but you do. Whatever your 
function is, is a service. So continuous management of the property to ensure 
maintenance is performed regularly is a service you are offering to the homeowners 
within the district. We just have to evidence and explain that very clearly. 

[Frank Palen] Noted. We should always try to do a better job of explaining 
the CDD’s function. As you can see, it’s not a simple situation. I will pass 
your recommendations along to the Board of Supervisors for their 
consideration. 

  

It may be easier here to hop on a call so we can discuss this in more detail. Feel free to 
give me a ring at 718-215-4082 or schedule a call with me at www.mikeporopat.net.  

  

[Frank Palen] I’d be happy to speak to you anytime! 

  

In the meantime, feel free to ask me any questions you might have! I've included the 
current version of the application for yyou to review the specifics (assuming my 
statements above are accurate and true). 

[Frank Palen] Why don’t you first review my responses and see if the 
forms need adjustment. I’m not familiar with how to present this 
information in your terms. 

  

Page 15



11

  

Mike 

  

  

  

Michael Poropat, Esq. 

Stockman & Poropat, PLLC 

371 Sunrise Highway 

Lynbrook, NY 11563 

Direct: 718-215-4082 

Office: 718-657-7400 

  

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

Page 16



12

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: 

The information contained in this e-mail message and any attachment is confidential information 
intended for the use of the individual or entity named in this message. This information may be 
protected by attorney/client privilege, work product  privilege  or other laws, rules, and regulations 
providing for the protection of confidential communications. If you are not the intended recipient, you 
are hereby notified that any retention, use, copying or forwarding of this message is prohibited. If you 
have received this e-mail message in error, please contact the sender of this message by return e-mail 
and delete this message and any attachments. 

  

  

Page 17



RRusss Totall Lawnn Maintenance

1731 Avenue F
Riviera Beach, FL  33404
United States
john_a_russ@yahoo.com

Estimate
AADDRESS

Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District

EESTIMATEE # 1009
DDATE 06/18/2025

  

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

BBeautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. Mammy 
Croton

154 15.00 2,310.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. Ixora 38 15.00 570.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. 
Pinwheel

12 12.00 144.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. Coco 
plums

10 15.00 150.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. 
Plumbago

4 18.00 72.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 3 gal. Porto 
Corpus

1 15.00 15.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape 15 gal Clusia 
Plants

54 95.00 5,130.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape Remove 
Bougainvillea 
and dead 
Viburnum 
hedge

1 1,200.00 1,200.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape Red Mulch 13 300.00 3,900.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape St Augustine 
Sod

2 260.00 520.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape Remove dead 
trees and 
stump grind
4 Buttonwood 
and 1 
Cabbage 
Palm

1 800.00 800.00

Beautifyy existingg landscape Labor 1 4,450.00 4,450.00

Page 18



SUBTOTAL 19,261.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $$19,261.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Thousand Oaks
Community Development District

  Financial Report For
July 2025

Page 27



Page 28


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District - August 11, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 14, 2025, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Discussion: Clarify and Confirm Direction to Outside Counsel Regarding Logo Trademark
	Update on Beautification on Congress (along fence line)	
	Financial Report




